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Re: Demand for Hearing 

To Whom It May Concern: 

We represent Kaiser Foundation Health Plan of the Northwest ("KFHPNW"). We write to 
formally demand a hearing before an administrative law judge ("ALJ"), pursuant to RCW 
48.04.010 et seq., to challenge the Office of Insurance Commissioner's ("OIC") Order to Cease 
and Desist of September 2, 2015 ("Order"). A copy of the Order is attached. 

In the Order, OIC directs KFHPNW to cease and desist offering its large group health plans to 
consumers who do not live or work in Clark or Cowlitz Counties. OIC further directs KFHPNW 
to issue notice of the discontinuation of policies to current Washington state plan members who 
neither live nor work in Clark or Cowlitz Counties. KFHPNW challenges OIC's Order on the 
following general grounds: 

• Implementation of the Order would be disruptive and harmful to members in KFHPNW's 
health plans. 

o The Order requires that KFI-IPNW issue notice of the discontinuation of policies 
to current Washington state plan members who neither live nor work in Clark or 
Cowlitz Counties. Many of the affected members are enrolled in plans with terms 
that run through June 2016. Even ifthere were a proper basis for the Order (and 
KFHPNW believes that there is not - see discussion below), its implementation 
would result in significant disruption and hardship, particularly for those members 
who would experience a mid-year termination of coverage - and for their 
employers, who may not have an alternative health plan that can offer 
replacement coverage to their employees. 
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o Cancelling coverage for members and their families mid-contract - particularly 
where the members may have just recently chosen a health plan during a 
regularly-scheduled open enrollment - would create significant disruption, 
confusion, and frustration. Members have an expectation that their coverage will 
be in force for the 12 months following enrollment, barring any change in their 
employment status. 

o In all cases, the loss ofKFHPNW coverage will disrupt members' medical care, 
because KFHPNW's primary provider network has no current contracts with 
other health plans. In other words, members who lose coverage under their 
existing plans will generally no longer be able to receive medical care from their 
current providers, with whom they may have long-established relationships, even 
if they obtain alternate coverage. 

• The remedy sought by the Order is overbroad. 

o Discontinuation of the entire policies at issue would be an excessive remedy. 
Even pursuant to what we believe to be OIC's overbroad application of the 
definition of "service area" (see discussion below) only certain members who live 
and work outside the service area are ineligible for coverage under plans where 
the employers are headquartered in Clark and Cowlitz Counties. 

o The Order purports to require KFHPNW to send discontinuation notices directly 
to the 590 members who simply have an address outside ofKFI-IPNW's service 
area. However, many such members may still be eligible for coverage because 
they work inside the service area. Requiring KFHPNW to send discontinuation 
notices directly to members who may actually remain eligible for coverage will 
unnecessarily ·alarm and confuse those members. 

• Even ifthe OIC's application of the "service area" definition to KFHPNW's large group 
plans is correct, OIC should, at a minimum, permit KFHPNW to continue the plans at 
issue through the end of their terms. 

o The plans at issue were renewed while discussions between OIC and KFHPNW 
staff concerning the service area definition and other issues continued. Based on 
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ongoing discussions between the parties, KFHPNW believed in good faith, that 
OIC had acquiesced in the renewal of the plans with mid-year termination dates. 

o KFHPNW's beliefthat OIC had acquiesced in the renewals was reasonable, 
because OIC had previously indicated it contemplated letting existing plans run 
through their current terms. 

o Moreover, OIC did not object to large groups filed with service areas that did not 
include full counties for 2015 until seven months after filing -- and a full three 
months after such plans went into effect -- and well after the regulations that 
purportedly forbade that approach were in effect (see discussion below). 

o KFHPNW, the employers who offer KFHPNW's health plans to their employees, 
and the members enrolled in KFHPNW plans all relied on the availability of 
current coverage at least for the current term of the plan. 

o The burden of the mid-year terminations required by the Order will fall unfairly 
on plan members, who will bear the unexpected mid-year loss of health care 
coverage and breach of their relationships with their providers. 

• There is no consumer harm that would warrant the remedy sought by OIC. 

o Each of the health plans offered by KFHPNW, including the large group plans at 
issue, provides coverage that -- aside from the disputed definition of "service 
area" -- affords members access to adequate health care. Despite its current focus 
on shifting large group plans to a county-based service area, OIC has never 
indicated that KFHPNW members do not have access to adequate care, and 
KFHPNW is aware of no instance in which its members have lacked such access. 

o Ironically, implementation of the Order could itself lead. to impeded access to 
health care. As stated above, many members will lose coverage, including some 
who are eligible for that coverage even under OIC's interpretation of"service 
area." Moreover, even those members who secure other coverage will generally 
lose the ability to receive medical care from their current providers. 
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• The Order involves an improperly broad application of the definition of"service area" set 
forth in WAC 284-43-130(29). 

o The Order is based on what KFHPNW believes to be the improper extension to 
large group plans of a requirement that is applicable only to individual and small 
group plans: the requirement that service areas must be comprised of entire 
counties and may not include partial counties. 

• The definition of a "service area" delineated in WAC 284-43-130(29) was 
revised in 2014 for the stated purpose of aligning Washington's 
regulations with corresponding federal regulations applicable only to 
individual and small group health plans offered both inside and outside 
the Exchange. (See Concise Explanatory Statement, Network Access 
Rulemaking R-2013-22 and purpose statements at WSR 14-07-102 WSR 
14-10-017). Those federal regulations do not apply to large group plans. 
See 45 CFR § 156.230. Nor does -- or should -- the revised definition of 
"service area" in WAC 284-43-130(29) apply to such plans. 

• Aside from the above-referenced definition of"service area" that was 
revised to address changing requirements for small group and individual 
plans, there is no express statement or other indication in the applicable 
statutes or regulations that the revised service area requirement applies to 
large group plans. A change in service area requirements for lai:ge group 
plans represents a significant departure from established practice that 
would have been accomplished by a more direct statutory or regulatory 
statement. 

• OIC also cites the general network access regulations (WAC 284-43-200) 
and the statutory requirement that members have access to appropriate 
health care services (RCW 48.43.515). Not only does neither authority 
addresses the definition of"service area," the health plans offered by 
KFHPNW in all respects comply with WAC 284-43-200 and RCW 
48.43.515. 

• Despite its belief that OIC has improperly applied the above-referenced 
definition of service area to large group plans, in the interest of 
cooperation, and in anticipation of continued opportunities to discuss the 
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application of the definition to large group plans with OIC, KFHPNW 
revised its 2015 large group plan filings to reflect the above-referenced 
service area definition. 

o The Order, taken to a presumably unintended extreme, could require that 
individual members who work for employers with headquarters located within a 
service area, but who neither live nor work in that service area (for example, a 
member who works at a satellite office), are not eligible for the plan. 

For the above reasons, KFHPNW hereby formally demands a hearing before an ALJ. 

Robin L. Larmer 
Karin D. Jones 

Enclosure 
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Order No. 
OIC# 
NAlC# 

15-0205 
702 
95540 

ORDER TO CEASE AND DESIST 

Pursuant to RCW 48.02.080, RCW 48.43.515 and WAC 284-43-200, the Insurance 

Conunissioner of the State of Washington ("Insurance Conunissioner") orders the above-named 

Respondent, and its officers, directors, trustees, employees, agents, and affiliates to immediately 

cease and desist from: 

A Offering, selling or renewing any plans to any consumer that is ineligible because he 
or she does not currently work or live in Kaiser Foundation Health Plan of the 
Northwest's (Kaiser) Washington service area of Clark and Cowlitz counties; 

B. By December 31, 2015, providing coverage to all current enrollees who do not 
currently live or work in Clark and Cowlitz counties. This includes, but is not limited 
to enrollees receiving coverage through Wahkiakum County - group #16676, 
Bonneville Hot Springs Reson - group # 1631 l, and the Public Employees Benefits 
Board also known as PEBB. Affected enrollees must receive discontinuation notice 
pursuant to 48.43.035. 

BASIS: 

I. Kaiser's actions described herein violate Insurance Code provisions that include 

RCW 48.43.515 [access to appropriate health services] and WAC 284-43-200 [network access 

- general standards). 
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2. The Office of the Insurance Commissioner previously infonned Kaiser that it met 

network access standards only in Clark and Cowlitz counties, and that coverage outside of those 

counties would be in violation of the network access regulations. 

3. Kaiser chose not to pursue sufficient network access in counties outside of Clark 

and Cowlitz, through either contracting with more providers or by filing an alternative access 

delivery request (AADR). 

4. Kaiser acknowledged to the Office of the In5urance Commissioner the inadequate 

networks in all other Washington countie~ and chose to limit its service area to Clark and Cowlitz 

counties. Subsequently, Kaiser filed network access reports for.Clark and Cowlitz counties only. 

5. Th~ Office of the Insurance Commissioner has recently determined that Kaiser 

has been offering and providing coverage to enrollees who neither Jive nor work in the service 

area of Clark and Cowlitz counties. These plans through which these enrollees receive coverage 

include, but are not limited to, Wahkiakum County - group·#16676, Bonneville Hot Springs 

Resort - group# 16311, and the Public Employees Benefits Board also known as PEBB. 

4. Network access laws and rules exist to provide protection to consumers by 

ensuring that the plans' they purchase provide sufficient access to care through adequate provider . 

networks. Kaiser enrollees who neither Jive nor work in Clark and Cowlitz counties are not 

covered .bY adequate networks. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that: 

I. Nothing herein shall prevent Respondent from fulfilling the terms of contracts 

formed prior to the effective date of this Order until December 31, 2015; 

2. Before September 16, 2015, Kaiser will report to the Insurance Commissioner the 

following information relating to plans offered or sold to consumers who neither live nor work in 

Clark and Cowlitz counties: 

• The number of plans offered or sold; 

• The number of enrollees in the plans; 

• The premium charged enrollees; and 

• An estimate of all current out of pocket expenses incurred by enrollees to date, 
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3. Before September 16, 2015, Kaiser will draft a lawful discontinuation notice of 

these policies and submit that draft for approval to the Insurance Commissioner. This notice will 

inform enrollees that their coverage will end as of December 31, 2015. 

4. After approval of the notice by the Insurance Commissioner, Kaiser will timely 

issue this notice to the enrollees of these plans. 

5. Any violation of the terms of this Order by Respondent and their officers, 

directors, trustees, employees, agents, and affiliates will render the violator(s) subject to the full 

penalties authorized by RCW 48.02.080, 48.15.023, and other applicable sections of the 

Insurance Code of the state of Washington. 

The Respondent has the right to demand a hearing in accordance with RCW 48.04.010, 

WAC 284-02-070 illld WAC 10-08-110. 

This Order shall remain in effect subject to the further order of the Insurance 

Commissioner. 

THIS ORDER IS EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY AND IS ENTERED ·at Tumwater, 

Washington, this '2w... day of Srer!?A801t1 2015. 

MIKE KREIDLER 
Insurance Commissioner 

By and through his designee 

~~ M;;;;;;y";; 
Insurance Enforcement Specialis;--..... 
Legal Affairs Division 
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

The widersigned certifies Wider the penalty or perjury wider the laws of the state of 

Washington that I am now and at all times herein mentioned, a citizen of the United States, a 

resident of the state of Washington, over the age of eighteen years, not a party to or interested in 

the above-entitled action, and competent to be a witness herein. 

On the date given below I caused to be served the foregoing Order to Cease and Desist on 

the following authorized Health Care Service Contractor by depositing Hand_ Delivery as 

indicated below and in the U.S. mail with proper postage affixed to: 

VIA US MAIL 
Kaiser Fowidation Health Plan of the Northwest 
500 NE Multnomah St Suite 100 
Portland, OR 97232-5398 

VIA US MAIL and HAND DELIVERY 
Kaiser Fowidation Health Plan of the Northwest 
Prenti~ Hall Corp 
202 N. Phoenix St 
Olympia, WA 98506 
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